
 
 

City of Dillingham  February 4, 2016  
Regular Council Meeting Page 1 of 3 

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  
DILLINGHAM 

 
 

HMAM 

Alice Ruby, Mayor 
 

Council Members  
     Holly Johnson (Seat A)  Chris Maines (Seat B)  Misty Savo (Seat C) 
 Curt Armstrong (Seat D)  Andy Anderson (Seat E)  Paul Liedberg (Seat F) 

 

DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 
David B. Carlson Council Chambers 

Dillingham City Hall, 141 Main Street, Dillingham, AK 99576 (907) 842-5212 
 

WORKSHOP–HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 6:30 P.M.  FEBRUARY 4, 2016 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. FEBRUARY 4, 2016 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

a. Regular Council Meeting, December 3, 2015  .............................................. page 5 
 
 b. Special Council Meeting, January 6, 2016 .................................................... page 13 

 
4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a. Resolution No. 2016-01, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Proclaiming 
February as School Board Recognition Month ............................................ page 15 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA   

 
5. STAFF REPORTS    
 

a. City Manager and Staff Reports .................................................................... page 17 
 

b. Standing Committee Reports ........................................................................ page 55 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
7. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Prior Notice or Agenda Items) 

 
a. Mike Davis – School Trip to Juneau  

 
8.  ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 

a. Introduce Ordinance No. 2016-01, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Authorizing an Increase in Animal Registration, Kennel Permit, and Euthanization 
Fees in Title 7 Animals ................................................................................ page 81 

 
 

1 of 177



 
 

City of Dillingham  February 4, 2016  
Regular Council Meeting Page 2 of 3 

b. Introduce Ordinance No. 2016-02, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Amending Title 2 to Clarify City Law Regarding Management of Public Documents 
and Records and to Identify City Records that are Not Open to Public Inspection 
Due to Privacy Concerns ............................................................................ page 87 
 

c. Introduce Ordinance No. 2016-03, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Amending Dillingham Municipal Code Chapter 2.72 Education ................. page 99 
 

d. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-02, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 
Approving the Completion of the Nerka Road Design to Include the Extension of 
Teal Lane to Emperor Way  ....................................................................... page 103 

 
e. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-03, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Authorizing a Long Term Encroachment Permit for Nushagak Cooperatives to 
Adjust the Height of the Transformer and Value at the City Dock Lift Station   

 ................................................................................................................... page 117 
 
f. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-04, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Authorizing a Long Term Encroachment Permit for Nushagak Cooperatives to Bury 
a Communication Conductor in Order to Remove the Harbor Spur Road Crossing
................................................................................................................... page 123 

 
g. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-05, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Authorizing a Long Term Encroachment Permit for Nushagak Cooperatives to 
Install a Street Light at Lot 2B Block 18 of the White Subdivision .............. page 129 

 
h. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-06, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Appointing an Alternate Community Representative to the BBEDC Board of 
Directors .................................................................................................... page 135 

 
i. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-07, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Amending the 2016-2021 Capital Improvement Plan and the FY2017 Legislative 
Priorities List adopted August 6, 2015, Resolution No. 2015-45  ............... page 139 

 
j. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-08, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Formally Adopting the Hazard Mitigation Plan  .......................................... page 145 
 
k. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-09, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Approving a Request for Proposal to Design Remaining Repairs of the City Lagoon 
System ....................................................................................................... page 151 

 
l. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-10, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Waiving 

the Purchasing Restrictions and Awarding a Task Order to CRW Engineering 
Group LLC to Prepare the RFP for the Replacement of Six Lift Stations ... page 155 

 
m. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-11, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Authorizing the City Manager to Waive the Competitive Bid Process and Purchase 
a 1987 Grove RT-760 Crane  ..................................................................... page 161 

 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

2 of 177



 
 

City of Dillingham  February 4, 2016  
Regular Council Meeting Page 3 of 3 

a. Citizen Committee Appointments  
 
1) Planning Commission, 3 Seats Open  ............................................ page 165 

 
2) Library Advisory Board, 2 Seats Open 

 
3) Marijuana Advisory Committee ....................................................... page 167 

 
b. DLG Petition to Annex Nushagak Commercial Fishing Waters Update 

 
c. Interim Task Force Borough Feasibility Study Update 
 
d. Manokotak/Dillingham Road Feasibility Study (Clerk Note:  This item will be a 

handout at the Council meeting.) 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS  
 

a. Action Memorandum No. 2016-01, Award a Contract to Agnew::Beck for Planner 
Services ..................................................................................................... page 169 

 
 b. Liquor License Renewals 
 

1) Dillingham Liquor Store................................................................... page 171 
 

2) Willow Tree Inn ............................................................................... page 175 
 
11. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Open to the Public) 
 
12. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
13. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 
14. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

a. Legal Matter  
 

  1) Union Contract  
 
  2) Update from Public Safety Department        
 

b. Personnel Matter 
 
  1) Manager’s Contract 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT  

3 of 177



 

4 of 177



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      DECEMBER 3, 2015 
 
 

City of Dillingham  December 3, 2015 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 1 of 8 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Dillingham City Council was held on Thursday, December 3, 2015, at 
the Dillingham City Council Chambers, Dillingham, Alaska. Mayor Alice Ruby called the meeting 
to order at 7:01 p.m.  The Council meeting was preceded by a workshop at 6:30 p.m. for a 
quarterly review of the financial statements.   
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Alice Ruby was present. 
 
Council Members present and establishing a quorum (a quorum being four): 

Holly Johnson Misty Savo  Andy Anderson  Paul Liedberg 
            

Council Members absent: Chris Maines (excused) Curt Armstrong (excused) 
 
Staff in attendance: 
 Rose Loera  Navin Bissram Dan Pasquariello  Janice Williams 

  
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

a. Regular Council Meeting, November 5, 2015  
 

b. Meeting of the Board of Equalization, November 24, 2015 
 

MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Misty Savo seconded the motion to approve the 
minutes of November 5, 2015 and November 24, 2015.  
 

VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 

4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
There was no consent agenda.  
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA   
 
MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to approve the 

revised agenda dated December 2, 2015.   
 

MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Andy Anderson seconded the motion to suspend the 
rules and move item 7. Citizen’s Discussion before item 5a. City Manager & Staff 
Reports, and open the discussion to others to address the Council on any topic.  
 

VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 
5. STAFF REPORTS    
 

a.  City Manager and Staff Reports  
 

5 of 177



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      DECEMBER 3, 2015 
 
 

City of Dillingham  December 3, 2015 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 2 of 8 

City Manager Loera reported on the following items in addition to her staff report: 
 Hazard Mitigation Plan: update is needed to apply for FEMA funding; will bring a 

resolution updating the 2008 plan to the January Council meeting; 
 Fire Truck purchased from State of Alaska for $500; 
 Suggestion to add tasks to several committees as follows: 

- Finance - Increase several of the dock rates 
- Code – change some of the Port tariff language 
- Code – review eliminating tax on value of aircraft that is over $300,000 
- Code – review vicious animals  

 
MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to move the 

suggestions to the appropriate committee’s task list.  
 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 

 Union negotiations: will add an executive session at the January Council meeting for a 
presentation from Bill Meade; 

 CIP Update for Legislative Session 2017: suggest not doing the public process for one 
year, and bring forward a resolution with an abbreviated list at the Jan. Council meeting;  

 Lobbying efforts this year: to preserve existing funds;  
 Recruit for HazMat team: Holly Johnson volunteered to participate with the group; 
 Strategic Planning: poll the Council for available times in January;  
 Tennyson Lift Station: both pumps out, having to rebuild a pump and buy a new one.    

 
Discussion ensued: 

 Suggest lobbying efforts this year would be to preserve existing funds;  
 Keep a trip to Juneau to lobby as an option;  
 Thanked Police Chief for the officers dedicating time in the school; 
 Applauded Port Director and wrestling team for cleaning up the harbor property; and 
 Appreciated having ambulances stationed at sporting functions.   

 
b. Standing Committee Reports  
 

Finance and Budget Committee: Paul Liedberg reported they had spent considerable time 
reviewing the financial statements, were recommending increase in the motor vehicle 
registration tax, had reviewed animal fees and fines, and clarified the language in the resolution 
on school funding.  
 
Carlson House Advisory Committee:  Holly Johnson reported U.S Fish and Wildlife and Ted 
Krieg would be invited to present their proposed use of the Carlson property at the next meeting, 
and the city’s attorney had been asked to clarify the deed restrictions on the property to ensure 
their recommendation fit in with the restrictions.   

 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Mayor Ruby opened the public hearing on Ordinance No. 2015-20.   
 

6 of 177



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      DECEMBER 3, 2015 
 
 

City of Dillingham  December 3, 2015 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 3 of 8 

a. Adopt Ordinance No. 2015-20, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Authorizing an Increase in the Motor Vehicle Registration Tax Collected by the 
State Under AS 28.10.431 

 
There being no public comment, the public hearing closed. 
 
7. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Prior Notice or Agenda Items) 
 
 a. Nick Smeaton, Squaw Creek Road  
 
Nick Smeaton spoke in earnest about the poor road conditions on Squaw Creek Road, having to 
endure potholes every day, that it was taking a toll on their vehicles, posing a safety risk, and 
was asking the city to maintain it.  It was his understanding one of the property owners was 
willing to provide a 30’ easement, which he thought was the issue.  He felt residents along that 
road paid taxes, but were not getting their fair share of city services with the road not being 
maintained.  He noted if the City could grade the road at least once a month until the easement 
issues could be resolved that it would really help.     
 
Olga Kropoff read from a letter provided by a Squaw Creek Road resident concerned the 
condition of the road was not only a safety hazard, but was very hard on their vehicles.  She 
noted the school bus was no longer traveling down the road, which required the children having 
to walk to the bus stop, putting them at risk of loose animals.  Olga noted in her personal 
experience the road had never been in good shape, but at least there was some maintenance.  
She invited the Council to drive it to experience it for themselves.   
 
8.  ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 

a. Adopt Ordinance No. 2015-20, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Authorizing an Increase in the Motor Vehicle Registration Tax Collected by the 
State Under AS 28.10.431  
 

MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to adopt Ordinance 
No. 2015-20 (SUB).   

 
The substitute ordinance removed the reference to an annual filing.  

 
VOTE: The motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2015-20 (SUB) passed unanimously by voice 

vote. 
 

b. Adopt Resolution No. 2015-63, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 
Adopting an Alternative Allocation Method for the FY16 Shared Fisheries 
Business Tax Program and Certifying that this Allocation Fairly Represents the 
Distribution of Significant Effects of Fisheries Business Activity in FMA 5:Bristol 
Bay  

 
MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Andy Anderson seconded the motion to adopt 

Resolution No. 2015-63.   
 

7 of 177



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      DECEMBER 3, 2015 
 
 

City of Dillingham  December 3, 2015 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 4 of 8 

VOTE: The motion to adopt Resolution No. 2015-63 passed unanimously by voice vote. 
 
c. Adopt Resolution No. 2015-64, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Accepting the Supplementary Tax Assessment Roll on Escaped Property   
 

MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to adopt Resolution 
No. 2015-64.   

 
The Council was being asked to adopt the amended version that was on the table, which 
provided payment date of January 31, 2016.   
 
VOTE: The motion to adopt Resolution No. 2015-64 [as amended] passed unanimously 

by voice vote.  
 
d. Adopt Resolution No. 2015-65, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Accepting the State of Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation’s (DEC) 
Municipal Matching Grant (MMG) #28308 for Water System Improvements 

 
MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Andy Anderson seconded the motion to adopt 

Resolution No. 2015-65.   
 

Discussion: 
 Voiced concern that the timeline was short.  
 

Manager Loera noted this grant required a 70/30 match, that to date the City did not have a 
match, but she would be contacting ANTHC as soon as the application period opened in 
January.  The grant will expire in 2017.  

 
VOTE: The motion to adopt Resolution No. 2015-65 passed unanimously by voice vote. 

 
e. Adopt Resolution No. 2015-66, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Supporting the Update of the Dillingham Coordinated Transportation Plan to be 
Submitted to the State of Alaska Department of Transportation and Public 
Facilities and to Apply to a Section 5310 Grant to Replace the Senior Center ADA 
Compliant Van  

 
MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Andy Anderson seconded the motion to adopt 

Resolution No. 2015-66.   
 

Manager Loera reported she was receiving help from BBNA to update the City’s coordinated 
public transit-human services transportation plan, which would allow the City to apply for a 
federal grant for a new senior van.  The 20% match would come from the City’s equipment 
replacement fund.  

 
VOTE: The motion to adopt Resolution No. 2015-66 passed unanimously by voice vote. 

 

8 of 177



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      DECEMBER 3, 2015 
 
 

City of Dillingham  December 3, 2015 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 5 of 8 

f. Adopt Resolution No. 2015-67, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 
Supporting the Curyung Tribal Council’s Application to Participate in the BBEDC 
Arctic Tern Grant Program  

 
MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to adopt Resolution 

No. 2015-67.   
 
Mayor Ruby disclosed as an employee for BBEDC, her dept. administered the grant, but she 
would not benefit financially from it.  

 
VOTE: The motion to adopt Resolution No. 2015-67 passed unanimously by voice vote. 

 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
a. Citizen Committee Appointments  

 
1) Planning Commission, 1 Seat Open  

 
2) Library Advisory Board, 2 Seats Open 

 
Mayor Ruby reported there were no appointments to recommend.    

 
b. DLG Petition to Annex Nushagak Commercial Fishing Waters Update 

 
Mayor Ruby stated there was nothing to report.  

 
c. Interim Task Force Borough Feasibility Study Update 

 
Mayor Ruby reported the project was being readvertised to clarify the selected consultant would 
be working with the task force and not directly with BBNA.  

 
10. NEW BUSINESS  
 

a. Action Memorandum No. 2015-24, Approve Administrative Leave for the 
Christmas Holiday and New Year’s Holiday    

  
MOTION: Paul Liedberg moved and Holly Johnson seconded the motion to adopt Action 

Memorandum No. 2015-24.   
 

MOTION: Misty Savo moved and Holly Johnson seconded the motion to amend AM 2015-24 
to include a full day of administrative leave for December 24 and December 31.  

 
VOTE: The motion to adopt the amended Action Memorandum No. 2015-24 passed 

unanimously by voice vote. 
 
 b. Action Memorandum No. 2015-25, Approve Sale #1 of the Carlson House 

Property Items  

9 of 177



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      DECEMBER 3, 2015 
 
 

City of Dillingham  December 3, 2015 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 6 of 8 

MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Misty Savo seconded the motion to adopt Action 
Memorandum No. 2015-25.   

 
VOTE: The motion to adopt Action Memorandum No. 2015-25 passed unanimously by 

voice vote. 
 
 c. Action Memorandum No. 2015-26, Extend the Bristol Engineering Services Corp. 

(BESC) Contract Through November 30, 2015  
 
MOTION: Andy Anderson moved and Holly Johnson seconded the motion to adopt Action 

Memorandum No. 2015-26. 
 

VOTE: The motion to adopt Action Memorandum No. 2015-26 passed unanimously by 
voice vote. 

 
 d. Reschedule the January 7 Council Meeting 
 
MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Misty Savo seconded the motion to reschedule the 

January 7 Council meeting to January 13.  
 

VOTE: The motion to reschedule passed unanimously by voice vote. 
 
11. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Open to the Public) 
 
There was no citizen’s discussion.  
 
12. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
Paul Liedberg: 

 Stated that he appreciated all the work organizing the Carlson House Property items, and 
all the work done by staff; and 

 Stated that he hoped BBNA’s efforts would progress the work to resolve easement issues 
on the Squaw Creek Road.  

 
Misty Savo: 

 Agreed Squaw Creek Road was in horrible condition, and hoped the residents could work 
through the public process to get dedicated easements soon, and eventually get the road 
turned over to the City;   

 Noted her appreciation for all the work of the Carlson House committee and staff; 
 Noted her appreciation for having the a police officer presence in the schools and 

building a rapport with the students;  
 Commented staff truly deserved the holiday time off; and   
 Thanked the audience for bringing their comments to the Council.  
 

Holly Johnson: 
 Thanked staff for organizing the Carlson House property items and making the 

committee’s job easier;  

10 of 177



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      DECEMBER 3, 2015 
 
 

City of Dillingham  December 3, 2015 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 7 of 8 

 Thanked finance director for his time providing additional information to; and 
 Noted she appreciates there is a public process, but asked the City to help maintain 

Squaw Creek Road while BBNA worked through the issues.  
 

Andy Anderson: 
 Noted he echoed comments already made, that it was hard to have to wait for agencies 

to go through the process; and  
 Asked the manager to pat staff on the back for the work they do.  

 
13. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 
Mayor Ruby: 

 Requested Squaw Creek Road be put on a  future agenda, noting the Council’s adopted 
resolution took the position the City had no legal standing on the road; and  

 Recommended contacting BBNA to see if the City could provide temporary maintenance, 
and hoped it would not negatively affect any incentive to get the issues resolved.     

 
Discussion ensued: 

 Voiced concern over the liability issues sending equipment down a private road;  
 Noted there had been an effort to hire a private contractor, but it placed the burden on the 

few people who would pay for it;  
 Wanted some assurance that dedicating easements was moving forward; and  
 Voiced concern maintaining the road could open up inquiries into why the City was not 

servicing other private roads.  
 

Mayor Ruby: 
 Thanked Nushagak Cooperative, Chamber of Commerce and Paul Liedberg and 

Maryanne Dickey for helping with the Christmas Tree lighting;  
 Commented she had attended the AML conference and hoped other council members 

would attend in the future;  
 Stated it has been impossible to get people together to meet on the Manokotak proposed 

road;  
 Commented she was sad to hear about Greg Fisk’s death; 
 Echoed the Council’s comments that the City had great staff, and acknowledged those 

who had to work out in the cold; and  
 Asked for a moment of silence to remember all those lost since the last meeting, 

including Alice Gordon.  
 

14. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

a. Legal Matter  
 
1) Bingman Foreclosure Property 

 
 b. Personnel Matter 
 
  1) Manager’s Contract 

11 of 177



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      DECEMBER 3, 2015 
 
 

City of Dillingham  December 3, 2015 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 8 of 8 

MOTION: Paul Liedberg moved and Holly Johnson seconded the motion to enter into 
executive session to discuss Legal Matter, Bingman Foreclosure Property and 
Personnel Matter, Manager’s Contract.  [8:50 p.m.]  

 
VOTE: The motion to enter into executive session passed unanimously by voice vote. 
 
Manager Loera and Janice Williams attended the session for the first item, Bingman Foreclosure 
Property.   

 
MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Andy Anderson seconded the motion to come out of 

executive session [9:05 p.m.].   
 
VOTE:  The motion to come out of executive session passed unanimously by voice vote. 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT  

 
Mayor Ruby adjourned the meeting at 9:05 p.m.   
 
       ______________________________ 
       Mayor Alice Ruby  
 
ATTEST:      [SEAL]      
 
 
_______________________________ 
Janice Williams, City Clerk    
 
Approval Date:_______________________   

12 of 177



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
      JANUARY 6, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  January 6, 2016 
Special Council Meeting                                      Page 1 of 2 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A Special Meeting of the Dillingham City Council was held on Wednesday, January 6, 2016, at 
the Dillingham City Council Chambers, Dillingham, Alaska. Mayor Alice Ruby called the meeting 
to order at 5:33 p.m.    
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Alice Ruby was present. 
 
Council Members present and establishing a quorum (a quorum being four): 

Holly Johnson  Chris Maines   Misty Savo 
Curt Armstrong  Andy Anderson   
Paul Liedberg  - attended via teleconference 
 

Staff in attendance: 
 Rose Loera    Janice Williams    
 
Guests: City Attorney Brooks Chandler  
 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA    
 
MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Holly Johnson seconded the motion to approve the 

agenda.  
 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by roll call vote.   
 
4. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Prior Notice or Agenda Items) 
 
There was no citizen’s discussion.  
 
5.  SPECIAL BUSINESS 

 
a. Executive Session  
 

1) Legal Matter – City of Dillingham vs. Jim Bingman Sr.  
 

MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Chris Maines seconded the motion to enter into 
executive session to discuss Legal Matter – Dillingham and Manokotak 
Annexation Petitions [5:35 p.m.]. 

 
VOTE: The motion to enter into executive session passed unanimously by roll call vote. 
 
Mayor Ruby invited Rose Loera and Janice Williams into the executive session along with City 
Attorney Brooks Chandler.    

 
MOTION: Andy Anderson moved and Holly Johnson seconded the motion to come out of 

executive session [7:08 p.m.].    
 

13 of 177



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
      JANUARY 6, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  January 6, 2016 
Special Council Meeting                                      Page 2 of 2 

VOTE:  The motion to come out of executive session passed unanimously by roll call vote. 
 

6. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Open to the Public) 
 
There was no citizen’s discussion.  
 
7. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
There were no Council comments.  
 
8. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 
Mayor Ruby: 

 Noted at the Strategic Planning session scheduled for Feb. 2 would set priorities for City 
and legislative priorities; 
 

MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Chris Maines seconded the motion to authorize staff to 
move forward with Carlson House Property Sale #2.  

 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by roll call vote.  
 

 Noted had met with Rep. Edgmon and City Manager to get a feel for the upcoming 
legislative session.  

 
9. ADJOURNMENT  

 
Mayor Ruby adjourned the meeting at 7:14 p.m. 
 
       
       ______________________________ 
       Mayor Alice Ruby  
 
ATTEST:      [SEAL]      
 
 
_______________________________ 
Janice Williams, City Clerk    
 
Approval Date:_______________________   

14 of 177



 Meeting Date: February 4, 2016 
  

 
City of Dillingham   Resolution No. 2016-01  
Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF DILLINGHAM, ALASKA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-01 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL PROCLAIMING FEBRUARY 
AS SCHOOL BOARD RECOGNITION MONTH   

 
WHEREAS, the mission of the public schools is to meet the diverse educational needs 
of all children and to empower them to become competent, productive contributors to a 
democratic society and an ever-changing world; and  
 
WHEREAS, local school board members are committed to children and believe that all 
children can be successful learners and that the best education is tailored to the 
individual needs of the child; and  
 
WHEREAS, local school board members work closely with parents, educational 
professionals, and other community members to create the educational vision we want 
for our students; and  
 
WHEREAS, local school board members are responsible for enduring the structure that 
provides a solid foundation for our school system; and  
 
WHEREAS, local school board members assure the assessment of students, school 
staff, and educational programs and are accountable to the community; and  
 
WHEREAS, local school board members are strong advocates for public education and 
are responsible for communicating the needs of the school district to the public and the 
public’s expectations to the district;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Dillingham City Council declares its 
appreciation to the members of the Dillingham School Board and proclaim the month of 
February 2016 as School Board Recognition month in Dillingham.   
 
PASSED and ADOPTED by the Dillingham City Council on February 4, 2016.  
 
 ________________________________ 
 Alice Ruby, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      [SEAL] 
 
 
________________________________ 
Janice Williams, City Clerk 

15 of 177



 

16 of 177



Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing economy.  
* We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and other 
common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will promote 
excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 1 of 3 

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  

Mayor Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Holly Johnson 
  Chris Maines 
Manager  Misty Savo 
Rose Loera Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Paul Liedberg 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: January 28, 2016 
 
To: Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Rose Loera, City Manager 
 
Subject: December 2015 & January 2016 Report 
 
  
Vacancies – Fire Department Coordinator & Corrections Officer 
 
Contracts/Agreements Signed – Task Order to CRW Engineering Group for Lift Station 
Equipment Replacement and Bid documents. 
 
Grants – working on a Mental Health Trust Authority grant to make repairs and improvements 
at the Senior Center.  The maximum is $25,000 and we will use funds in the Equipment 
Replacement fund for the balance.  We budgeted $40,000 in 2015. 
 
BBEDC awarded an Assistance Grant to assist the City in writing a Tier 2 grant to the 
Rasmuson Foundation for siding on the library and work that is needed on the Senior Center.  
We are asking for $190,000 and will contribute about $20,000 from our Equipment/Facilities 
fund for matching. 
 
Landfill – the contractor completed the electrical work that was needed for the incinerator 
building.  We have issued the last payment to the building contractor. 
 
We received our renewal DEC Landfill Permit #SW2A015-19, that expires on Nov. 5, 2019.  We 
also got our Landfill inspection report for 2015 and received a 90.1%.  Many thanks to our 
Public Works Director who has worked hard in getting the landfill in compliance with the State. 
 
Request for Proposals (RFPs) – A RFP is on the streets for design of the required repairs to 
the air dispersion system to include piping valves, aerator repair etc and relocation of force main 
from one end of the lagoon system to the other.  The outlet manholes need new weir 
design/replacement, along with operating valves.  A flow meter needs to be installed in the 
system allowing proper data to be obtained for ADEC reporting.  It is the City’s intent to award 
the contract at the March 3 Council meeting for the design and prioritizing of the projects.  We 
want to get it designed so that when funding is available we could complete the work. 
 
Nerka Road & Teal Lane – the Planning Commission met on December 16, and is 
recommending to the Council that they have no objection to the 95% design of Nerka Road by 

17 of 177



Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing economy.  
* We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and other 
common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will promote 
excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 2 of 3 

Bristol Environmental Services Corp, which includes extending Teal Land Road to Emperor 
Way.  (Resolution No. 2016-02 to adopt the design is included in the Council packet.) 
 
Knik is working up an estimate for the City to pave from Wells Fargo to Lil Larry Road and the 
road to the High School.  We would like to get this work done when the State is here doing the 
Downtown Street projects.  It is estimated this would cost about $5 - $7 a square foot or 
$1,032,000. 
 
Correspondence to the State – we have sent two letters addressed to Governor Bill Walker in 
anticipation of the 2016 legislative session.  One letter is regarding our opposition to the closing 
of the DA’s office here in Dillingham and the other letter is regarding our interest in a State bond 
to build our Public Safety/Fire Department building.  The State is considering allowing State 
bonds to communities in lieu of capital funding for projects and we wanted to show our interest 
without committing in the event that it passes.   
 
Territorial School – Deborah McClean inquired to see if the idea of the Bristol Bay Campus 
taking possession of the territorial school for an artisan/entrepreneurship cooperative was 
feasible.  I would like to recommend that we refer this inquiry to the Finance Committee to 
discuss and make a recommendation. 
 
Hazard Mitigation Plan (HMP) – the State is recommending that the Council adopt the HMP as 
presented.  The City would not be eligible for FEMA funding without an updated HMP plan.  The 
last one that was approved is dated 2008.  A resolution to adopt it is in the packet.  Our Fire 
Dept. Coordinator will be presenting the plan at a workshop before the Council meeting. 
 
Strategic Planning - Date is February 2, at 5:30 p.m. with Melody Nibeck.  A meal will be 
provided.    
 
Items Worthy of Mentioning from 2015: 

 Navin Bissram was hired as the Finance Director; 
 Planning Director resigned; 
 Back-up generator at Public Safety failed and was replaced with grant funds; 
 Replaced radio system;  
 Army National Guard moved out of Dillingham; 
 Carlson House Committee reactivated.  Items in the Carlson House & Tool Shed 

inventoried and moved to the Territorial School to sell; 
 Corrections grant for the Regional Jail reduced by 80%; 
 Bristol Bay Campus developed a compost project at the Landfill; 
 State sold the City a State Fire Truck for $500 which replaced the Black Tanker; 
 Updated Water Master Plan; 
 Incinerator brought on-line.  Expenses in the landfill increased due to the fuel use with 

the incinerator, the need to purchase cover when burying the garbage, and the 
additional staffing requirements to burn longer hours; 

 The City had some challenges with the building contractor for the incinerator building, 
but these were eventually worked out and the last payment made [1/2016].  

 City of Dillingham’s Annexation petition was accepted by the Local Boundary 
Commission (LBC); 

 City of Manokotak’s Annexation petition for the Igushik section of the Nushagak 
Commercial fishing district was also accepted by the LBC; 

 
 

18 of 177



Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing economy.  
* We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and other 
common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will promote 
excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 3 of 3 

 
 Foreclosed on numerous properties owned by Jim Bingman Sr. for non-payment of 

taxes.  Property sold in five months and we were able to collect all that was owed the 
City, and the expenses that were incurred pursuing the foreclosure;  

 Lagoon outfall line exposed due to erosion.  Bank is about 300 feet from the Lagoon;  
 Public Works shored up the sheet metal piling with rip rap, because the area had 

eroded; 
 City of Dillingham involved in a lawsuit by the Knutsen family for the drowning of their 

brother in the harbor; and 
 Lawsuit that was filed by Darcy Olson against the City & State was settled out of court 

for $30,000.   
 
 
Attachment: Construction Report Update – Gary Gordon  
  Lobbyist Report – Cliff Stone  
 
 
 
 
 

19 of 177



 

20 of 177



GORDON & ASSOCIATES, Inc 
P.O. Box 708 
Dillingham, Alaska  99576                                    phone 907-842-3485  fax 907-842-3482 
Box 876130 Wasilla, AK 99687                                      907-373-6654  fax 907-373-6679 
 
January 4, 2016 
 
To: City Council Members Dillingham, AK 
 
Review of 2015 Construction Activities:  
 
We accomplished a lot in 2015, not as much as I had hoped, however, we did get many of 
our projects complete, started, and in design. 
 
The incinerator building is complete, except for a few minor items that are still 
outstanding, which should be complete 1/13/16. This is a landmark project for Western 
Alaska and a proud accomplishment for us all. I am not sure of the operating cost side of 
the unit, but I do know it works as designed, and City cost was very close to estimated 
budget. 
 
We closed the compacting cell that we have been using the past several years, and got it 
approved by ADEC. We added an extension cell onto the current compacting cell and it 
is approved by ADEC. The incinerator also has ADEC blessing. The landfill is in 
compliance. ADEC has requested a hydro study, monitoring ground water flow. Bristol 
has challenged that request, and ADEC is still reviewing. We don’t anticipate the need 
for the hydro study. Bristol is designing two new large compacting cells. We have 
reviewed the 35% submittals, and we should have the 65% review documents by the 
middle of the month. 
 
Public Works Department most likely saved the east end of our Seawall this season. It 
was a lot of extra work for that department. The work was weather sensitive, because of 
mud when it rained and tides, working on the beach. Hopefully, the winter ice will evade 
our wall and spring will reveal a well supported wall. 
 
The outfall line still needs protection. Hopefully, winter storms will not damage or 
remove our sewerage line into the bay. This line needs to be protected next season. Some 
of the required materials are onsite to start this work. 
 
The City’s main lift station LS6 is under contract to be rebuilt by Elite Mechanical. The 
project is well underway. The building has been built and some work has been completed 
inside. Submittals on equipment are coming in and being reviewed by Bristol, Dagen and 
myself. Each of us has our own areas of knowledge. In order to reduce costs, we are 
having Bristol do the mechanical and electrical review. Dagen and I are reviewing the 
balance. This project will be completed prior to fishing season 2016. 
 

21 of 177



The City put the remaining lift stations out for design. CRW Engineering Group was 
awarded the contract. We have received the 85% submittal for review. We added 
preparation of bid documents and specifications to their scope of work. It is our intent to 
bid the rebuilding of three of our worst lift stations in a few months. 
 
I prepared a new RFP for the design work required at our lagoon. We lost time this last 
year, thinking we could work at the lagoon without ADEC approval to construct, using 
routine maintenance as the cause for the work.  However, all our work required lowering 
of the lagoons, which is not permissible. The plan is to use our grant funds where needed, 
rebuilding lift stations, and the balance will be used to design the required work at the 
lagoon. Once designed and approval to construct is granted, the City can perform the 
work as funds and necessity requires.  
 
The Senior Center needs repair work. I estimated the cost of repairs and Rose was 
looking for funding. I talked to Norman Heyano a few times this year about modification 
and additions to the fire stations, but nothing has ever moved forward.  
 
The master water plan was engineered in 2015, and the grant has been appropriated. This 
was a major piece of work at substantial cost that has paid off for the City. We hope to be 
able to install at least one producing new well this year. The City’s water supply is 
fragile. One episode (like major fire) could result in water rationing or worse. 
 
Work on the Septage System continues. It got too late in the year to bring the new system 
online. It was decided to wait until next year, and that was a blessing, for the soils were 
not adequate to hold the 9000 gallon tanks. A new foundation design is planned, and the 
tanks will be reset in the spring. All materials are ready for the system to go into 
operation, even ADEC approval to operate.  
 
The second air pump has been set in place at the lagoon building. It appears this pump 
will match our operating configuration. The pump should get set into final position this 
month. Once operation has been tested, proper air output, we will order the other three 
pumps for barge shipment in March.  
 
The design work is started for work to proceed in a timely manner for 2016 construction 
season. I wish you all a very good 2016!  
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Gary L. Gordon      
City Project Manager 

22 of 177



 1 

City of Dillingham 
House District 37 / Senate District S 

 

 

~ 1/27/16 ~ 
 

 

29th Alaska State Legislature ~ 2nd Session 
 
 

JANUARY 2016 – LEGISLATIVE REPORT 
 

Cliff Stone / City Lobbyist 
 

~ Budget, budget, budget – deficit continues to grow ~ 
 

<><><><> 
 

Oil prices continue to plunge!  Standard & Poor lowered its rating on Alaska’s general obligation debt!  
The stock markets are roiling over uncertainty in the economy.  The budget deficit stands at $3.8 billion. 
 
The good news is that most legislators seem to agree that an overhaul of the Permanent Fund mechanism 
is needed to avoid certain calamity in Alaska.  Besides the discussions on how best to achieve this 
restructuring, the debate over cutting state government, and a multitude of proposed new taxes will 
dominate this session. 
 
Meanwhile, prefiled legislation gives us a glimpse into some of the other priorities legislators are 
considering.  Among them is a bill to repeal Medicaid expansion if any of four conditions are met, 
expansion would automatically stop.  Other bills have an impact on the acceptance of Medicaid funding 
and another would evaluate the current Medicaid program and its sustainability. 
 
As a sampling, one bill eliminates the 90-day legislative session and reverts back to a 121-day session as 
spelled out in the Alaska Constitution.  A resolution introduced would adjourn a session after 90 days. 

 

<><><><> 
 

GOVERNOR'S CORNER  http://gov.alaska.gov 
 
Governor Walker gave his State of the State address on January 21st.  For the full text and a video of the 
address, you can click on http://gov.alaska.gov/Walker/press-room/full-press-release.html?pr=7359  

 

 
Lt. Governor Byron Mallott signed Alaska’s first commercial marijuana regulations, but now the 
Legislature needs to pass a law that gives the FBI permission to perform background checks on 
prospective marijuana entrepreneurs. 
 
The New Year has also seen changes for the Division of Elections as hundreds of Alaskans are taking 
advantage of a new online voter registration.  The system is at – www.voteregistration.alaska.gov  
 
The first lady – Donna Walker gave a stirring speech at a gathering to remember Martin Luther King. 
 

<><><><> 

23 of 177

http://gov.alaska.gov/
http://gov.alaska.gov/Walker/press-room/full-press-release.html?pr=7359
http://www.voteregistration.alaska.gov/


 2 

PRE-FILED & NEW BILLS 
http://www.akleg.gov 

 
There were numerous pre-filed bills that were posted before the session begun.  They have since been 
read across and given their committee assignments.  Since the session convened, there have also been 
several more bills introduced.  I’ve listed the ones below that will have an impact on Dillingham and/or 
could have consequences that affect you. I will monitor these bills, current legislation already in play, and 
any future bills introduced.  I’ll be sure to report any progress on these that might impact you.  Please 
bring to my attention any other House or Senate legislation that you want me to keep track of. 
 
FY 17 Budget Bills 
HB 255 / SB 138 – Capital Budgets 
HB 256 / SB 139 – Operating Budgets  
– Letter to governor regarding the cut to the district attorney’s office in Dillingham was sent by the city. 
HB 257 / SB 140 – Mental Health Budgets 
Pending / Due by Day 15 (Feb. 2nd) – Supplemental Budgets 
Pending / Bonding options are being considered by both the administration and the legislature   
– Letter to the governor for consideration of your public safety building was sent by the city. 
 
General Municipal Issues 
HJR 27 / Claman – Adjourns the Legislature after 90 days of convening. 
HB 223 / Kito – Repeals the 90-day session reverting back to 121 days. 
HB 224 / Hawker – State planning and budgets, taxes, Permanent Fund, and the PFD. 
HB 245\SB 128 / Governor request – Permanent Fund, deposits, PFD, and earnings. 
HB 248\SB 131 / Governor request – Electronic tax returns and alcohol taxes. 
HB 249\SB 132 / Governor request – Electronic tax returns and motor fuel taxes. 
HB 250\SB 134 / Governor request – Individual income tax, credits, and returns. 
HB 251\SB 135 / Governor request – Electronic tax returns and fisheries taxes.  

 

SB 133 / Governor request – Electronic tax returns and tobacco, e-cigs taxes. 
SB 137 / Governor request – Electronic tax returns and mining licensing tax, fees. 
 
The above descriptions are very concise and may not convey the intent of the legislation.  I encourage you 
to review these and all new legislation as it’s introduced. 

 

<><><><> 
 

BILLS OF INTEREST STILL IN PLAY 
 

HB 75 / Regulation of Marijuana by Municipalities (Currently in Senate Rules awaiting Floor action) 
 

<><><><> 
 

IMPORTANT NOTES 
 

The Dept. of Revenue has now released the final draft of their Revenue Sources Book.  
Review this document at –  http://dor.alaska.gov  Click on the link Revenue Sources Book Fall 2015. 
This is a bi-annual publication providing basic information about state revenue. 
 
After the recent earthquake, here are a couple of contacts to have handy.  The State Emergency 
Operations Center can be reached at 907-428-7100 or visit www.ready.alaska.gov  
 

<><><><> 

24 of 177

http://www.akleg.gov/
http://dor.alaska.gov/
http://www.ready.alaska.gov/


 3 

COMMITTEE HEARINGS 
 

Committee work started up again on the first day of session. Go to the Legislature’s homepage –  
http://akleg.gov/index.php   Click on Daily Schedule at the top of the page. 
 
Testifying 

If you are planning to testify on any particular bill or subject matter, check the committee calendar the day 
of or the day before the scheduled hearing as sometimes a bill is rescheduled or cancelled at the last 
minute.  You should also be able to ascertain if they are even accepting public testimony on any particular 
day.  If you can’t attend a hearing in person or at your local LIO you can participate by using the 
following numbers.  This number should only be used if you have prior approval from the committee 
chair.  The toll free number in Alaska: 1-855-463-5009.  In Juneau: (907) 463-5009. 
 
Go to: http://www.akleg.gov/basis/start.asp for a complete description of a bill that is up in committee.  
Fiscal notes and other documents that the legislative office has posted in regards to that particular bill is 
also available.  Type in the appropriate bill/resolution number in the space provided.  Remember – Bills 
that have already been heard or previous scheduled in committee can come back before that body without 
prior notification. 
 
Live on the Web   [ www.360north.org ] 
Most committee hearings can be seen and heard on Gavel Alaska/360 North.  It is broadcast on both local 
access TV and on the Internet.  You can also access schedules, various programs, and online archives 
from the website above. 
 
Live streams of the governor’s speeches can be viewed at: 
http://gov.alaska.gov/Walker/multimedia/livestream.html  
 
 Archives of past videos can be accessed from this site. 
 
On the Radio and Web  [ http://www.alaskapublic.org ] 
News of Alaska and the political scene can be heard at the website above. 
 
Streaming Video 

Meetings streamed outside of Juneau are archived to the Legislature’s Vimeo site: 
https://vimeo.com/akltv  or  http://alaskalegislature.tv  
 

<><><><> 
 

IMPORTANT DATES 

 

15th Legislative Day (Feb. 2, 2016) Deadline for Governor’s FY16  Supplemental budget requests. 
30th Legislative Day (Feb. 17, 2016) Deadline for Governor to submit Amendments to the FY17 Budget. 
 
CAPSIS Deadline for capital projects submitted by communities is typically in early February. 
 
Closeouts Deadline for House Finance Subcommittees is normally late February. 
 
On Feb. 10th, Chief Justice Craig Stowers of the Alaska Supreme Court will give the State of the Judiciary 
Address.  Following a week later on Feb. 17th, Senator Lisa Murkowski will give her Annual Address.  
Senator Dan Sullivan will speak before the Legislature on Feb. 29th. 
 

25 of 177

http://akleg.gov/index.php
http://www.akleg.gov/basis/start.asp
http://www.360north.org/
http://gov.alaska.gov/Walker/multimedia/livestream.html
http://www.alaskapublic.org/
https://vimeo.com/akltv
http://alaskalegislature.tv/


 4 

Alaska Permanent Fund Dividend (Filing Deadline: March 31, 2016) 
Apply online at: pfd.alaska.gov 

 
Energy Council Meeting - The Energy Council meetings in Washington, DC are scheduled this year 
from March 3rd through March 6, 2016.  A few of the other legislators who don’t attend the D.C. meetings 
will return to their home districts to meet with constituents, but this number may be low due to the 
urgency of the budget crises.  Floor sessions, committee hearings, and other legislative business will 
continue as usual during this timeframe. 

 

<><><><> 
 

WEBSITES OF INTEREST 
 
2015 1st Session List of Legislators and staff http://akleg.gov/docs/pdf/whoswho2015.pdf  
(No update yet for 2016) 
 
2016 House / Senate – Standing and Special Committees http://akleg.gov/docs/pdf/commlist.pdf   
 
2016 House / Senate – Finance Sub-committee Members 
http://akleg.gov/docs/pdf/HFINSubcmte.pdf 
http://akleg.gov/docs/pdf/SFINSubcmte.pdf 
 
The full Legislative Publications List is at: http://akleg.gov/publications.php  

 
Legislative Finance Website: http://www.legfin.akleg.gov   
This link provides you with options to view specifics for the Capital and Operating Budgets. 

 
Legislative Finance Division’s 175-page overview of the Fiscal Year 2017 Governor's budget request 
http://www.legfin.akleg.gov/Overview/Overview2017.pdf  

  
Governor’s Office of Management & Budget (OMB) website - https://www.omb.alaska.gov  
Pick the Quick Link on the right column for your inquiry. 
 
Congressional Delegation websites – 
http://murkowski.senate.gov/public     www.sullivan.senate.gov      http://donyoung.house.gov 
 
http://www.ufafish.org/fishing-facts 
Current issues involving the commercial fishing industry including the Dillingham census area. 

 

<><><><> 
 

COMING NEXT MONTH 
 

 Updated 2016 lists for contacting legislators and their staff 
 

<><><><> 
 

Wishing all of you a prosperous New Year! 
~ Cliff 
 

~ End Report ~ 
 

 

26 of 177

http://www.pfd.state.ak.us/
http://akleg.gov/docs/pdf/whoswho2015.pdf
http://akleg.gov/docs/pdf/commlist.pdf
http://akleg.gov/docs/pdf/HFINSubcmte.pdf
http://akleg.gov/docs/pdf/SFINSubcmte.pdf
http://akleg.gov/publications.php
http://www.legfin.akleg.gov/
http://www.legfin.akleg.gov/Overview/Overview2017.pdf
https://www.omb.alaska.gov/
http://murkowski.senate.gov/public
http://www.sullivan.senate.gov/
http://donyoung.house.gov/
http://www.ufafish.org/fishing-facts


City of Dillingham Page 1 of 2 
Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing economy.  
* We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and other 
common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will promote 
excellence in education. 
 

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  

Mayor Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Holly Johnson 
 Chris Maines 
Manager Misty Savo 
Rose Loera Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Paul Liedberg 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Date: January 26, 2016 
 
To: Rose Loera, City Manager   
 
From:  Janice Williams, City Clerk  
 
Subject: Monthly Staff Report – Combines December and January  
 
 
Update on the 2008-2013 Foreclosure List. 
The next steps in the foreclosure process: 

 February – contact title company to obtain title reports on all unpaid properties.  
 March - publish in the newspaper for four consecutive weeks the notice of the end of the 

redemption period, and send each property owner a copy of the notice as well as any lien 
holders that the redemption period will close in 30 days.  As of January 26, four property 
owners account for the eleven properties remaining unpaid from the original list that was 
adopted by the Council August 7, 2014 and filed with the court system in October 2014.    

 
Recap of ordinances passed in 2015. 
Ordinance No. Description                       Adopted          C or N/C* 
*Non-code ordinances are legislative actions, but they do not get included in the Dillingham 
Municipal Code.   
2015-01  Budget Amendment No. 1 to FY2015 Budget  3.19.2015  N/C 
2015-02 Clarify sales tax on fuel sales made o/s Dillingham  3.19.2015  C 
2015-03 Clarify terms for an impounded animal   4.2.2015 C 
2015-04 (S-1) New Chapter – regulation of marijuana 5.14.2015 C 
2015-05 Amend/add definitions for smoking, includes devices/products 5.14.2015 C 
2015-06 Authorize disposal of city property (Nat’l Guard Bldg) 5.14.2015 N/C 
2015-07 (S-1) Prohibit improper deposit of fish waste 5.14.2015 C 
2015-08 Prohibit disposal of hazardous materials & establish penalty 6.4.2015 C 
2015-09 Adopt FY2016 Budget 6.18.2015 N/C 
2015-10 Review permit applications by a registered engineer 6.18.2015 C 
2015-11 Retain foreclosed property for public use (City Harbor) 7.13.2015 C 
2015-12 Accommodate sale of tax foreclosed property (Bingman’s) 7.13.2015 C 
2015-13 (S-1) Authorize disposal of city property by lease (Motive Power) 9.10.2015 N/C 
2015-14 Authorize city-owned property be offered for sale (Bingman’s) 10.1.2015 N/C 
2015-15 Authority to act on requests for exceptions to speed limits  10.15.2015 C 
2015-16 Add notice of intent to award to competitive bid process  10.15.2015 C 
2015-17 Add records manager to essential duties for city clerk  10.15.2015 C 

27 of 177



City of Dillingham Page 2 of 2 
Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing economy.  
* We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and other 
common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will promote 
excellence in education. 
 

2015-18 Establish procedures for senior real property exemption  11.5.2015 C 
2015-19 Add penalty for failing to file tax return, clarify assessment of 11.5.2015 C 
 Aircraft, add audit of personal/real property  
2015-20 (S-1) Increase Motor Vehicle Registration Tax by 20% 12.3.2015 C 
 
Recap department accomplishments in 2015. 
 Adding page numbering to the electronic council and committee packets to make it easier 

to follow along in the packet and replaced roman numerals with numbers;  
 Scanned and electronically archived to Laserfiche all Council minutes, resolutions and 

ordinances through 2014;  
 Researched and prepared information for various committees including: Code Review, 

School Facility, Finance and Budget, and Carlson House Advisory Committee.    
 Worked with the finance department to create a foreclosure information packet that was 

presented to the Council at a foreclosure workshop; 
 Proposed changes to the School Facility code to bring it in line with current practices; 
 Created fillable forms that are available online to the public;     
 Created liquor license application review process and form; 
 Coordinated removal and sale of property items from the Carlson House; 
 Created an employee portal on the city’s website to provide access to forms, contact 

information, manuals, and other useful information;   
 Prepared for delivery to the landfill 49 boxes of city records that were approved for 

destruction by the City’s Attorney based on the city’s records retention schedule.  
 
STANDING ITEM(S):  
Liquor License Renewals/Transfers/New Licenses.  
The following licenses expired December 31, 2015. The Code Review Committee reviewed the 
license renewals on January 14 and on January 25.  The recommendations are to be presented 
at the February 4 Council meeting.   
 Licensee, Alaska 49 LLC d/b/a establishment, Willow Tree Inn  
- The State has not received a renewal application as of January 26, 2016.  The State provides 

a two month grace period to file, which is February 29 this year. However, they will access a 
$500 penalty if not postmarked by December 31.  
 

 Licensee, Brannon Rentals LLC, d/b/a Dillingham Liquor Store  
- The State renewed the license for 2016-2017.  The City has 60 days from December 7, 2015, 

the date it was filed to file an objection, or February 7.     
 
Commission/Board Seats Vacant.     
Planning Commission  
There are three seats open.  There is one letter of interest on file.   
Library Advisory Board 
There are two seats open.  There are no letters of interest on file.  
 
 
Earned Certification for Municipal Clerk. I received email notification that I have earned the 
Certification for Municipal Clerks designation. Plaque, certificate and pin to follow in the mail.  
Many thanks to BBEDC for providing the funding to attend a week of training for each of the last 
two years at the University of Washington, conducted by the Northwest Clerks Institute.   

28 of 177



29 of 177



30 of 177



31 of 177



32 of 177



33 of 177



34 of 177



35 of 177



 

36 of 177



Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing economy.  
* We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and other 
common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will promote 
excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 1 of 2 

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  

Mayor Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Holly Johnson 
  Chris Maines 
Manager  Misty Savo 
Rose Loera Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Paul Liedberg 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: January 26, 2016 
 
To: Rose Loera, City Manager 
 
From: Sonja Marx, Librarian 
 
Subject: December and January Monthly Report 
 
 
 
We continued to look for a new School Librarian throughout December and then into 
January as city staff filled in while the classes came to the Library for their literacy time.  
Thankfully, one week after school started again, Rachel Aaberg-Darrough was hired on 
January 19th.  She started her training last week and is off to a great start. 
 
Our library was offered an Early Literacy Mini-Grant from the State Library.  We applied 
for it, and we will be receiving $998 worth of children’s equipment to encourage learning 
amongst our youngest patrons.  We look forward to this “Christmas Present” as we still 
anticipate its arrival.  We also received some of the bookshelves from the Carlson 
House to accent our rows of shelving.  This gives us a nice “bookstore” look, increasing 
our shelf space capacity by allowing us to display more materials effectively.  
  
GCI SchoolAccess responded to our 470 posting requesting Internet Service for FY 17.  
Nushagak should also provide a proposal and then a decision can be made regarding 
who will be our technology partner in providing internet service for our patrons and staff.  
With the strong possibility of the OWL funding disappearing which supplemented this 
expense, we need to budget according.  Our Library heavily depends on e-rate funding 
to help cover 80% of the internet costs. 
 
“Friday Night Movie at the Library” has been enjoyed by patrons young and old.  During 
the month of December, we showed “Inside Out” on the 4th and “Mr. Holmes” on the 
11th.   Since the city closed at 2pm on Friday the 18th due to blizzard conditions in town, 
no movie was shown that night.  In January, we showed “Minions” on the 8th; “Ant-Man” 
on the 15th; “PAN” on the 22nd; and will show “War Room” on the 29th.  In February, we 
will be showing “Hotel Transylvania 2” on the 5th; “Shaun the Sheep Movie” on the 12th, 
and “The Man from U.N.C.L.E.” on the 19th.  We encourage all to see these free movies. 
 
 

37 of 177



Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing economy.  
* We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and other 
common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will promote 
excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 2 of 2 

 
The Friends of the Library Board met on Saturday, January 9th to plan their annual 
“Love your Library Month.”  Books will be wrapped again for the “Blind Date with a 
Book” event.  There will be weekly drawings throughout the month for book gift bags for 
those patrons who check out books during the month.  The FOL are also raffling off an 
amazing Basket “Live, Love, Local” full of wonderful items donated by local artists and 
businesses.  Tickets will be $10 each.  Thanks to all the Friends who have given so 
generously of their time and talents for this fundraiser. 
 
 

Library Stat report for November 23rd, 2015 – January 23rd, 2016: 

Patron Visits:  4,664       Computer Use:  1,244       Wireless Use:  706  
Story Hour:  54   Other Visits (including students):  662   Museum Use:  43           

Movies Shown:  5   AWE Station Use:  41    Volunteer hours logged:  23 
  

The Library was closed Wednesday, December 23rd from 2 - 6 pm for the annual 
City Christmas Party at the Senior Center.  It was also closed Thursday, 

December 24th for Christmas Eve and Friday, December 25th for Christmas Day 
 

Library was closed Thursday, December 31st for New Year’s Eve and Friday, 
January 1st for New Year’s Day 

 
In February, the Library will be closed Monday, February 15th for President’s Day 

and Friday, February 26th for Beaver Roundup  
 

Next Library Advisory Board meeting scheduled for Tuesday, March 1st at 5:30 pm 
in the Library 

 
 

38 of 177



Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing economy.  
* We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and other 
common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will promote 
excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 1 of 2 

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  

Mayor Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Holly Johnson 
  Chris Maines 
Manager  Misty Savo 
Rose Loera Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Paul Liedberg 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date:          January 25, 2016   
 
To: Rose Loera, City manager 
 
From: Jean Barrett, Port Director 
 
Subject: December 2015 / January 2016 monthly staff report 
 
 
December and January are inevitably the slowest months at the Port Department. I 
have been catching up on some projects and making plans for the upcoming season. 
 
Dock  
I have been able to get some things done at the dock for next summer despite the 
winter months and some things have been happening even without me. 

 Spending a large amount of time working with AMLJIA and PN&D Engineering 
on the repair plan on the all tide dock.  Two summers ago a Northland owned 
barge that was piloted by Dunlap Towing slammed into the dock causing damage 
to the most upriver bumper piling. We had some issues coming to an agreement 
as to who needed to pay for what.  The City of Dillingham, PND and AMLJIA 
have come up with a repair plan and a price to fix the damage, along with the 
installation of a dolphin bumper to help protect the dock from sustaining more 
damage in the future.  

 Discussed making some revisions and corrections to the Port Tariff, but have 
since decided that we would wait a year to make any more revisions other than 
the already planned 20% increase to the fish container price and a few 
grammatical changes to help clarify some of the descriptions. 

 Working with HR on revising a job description for the dock. After losing our office 
person early last season we made due without, however, this caused us to be 
overdue on getting some billing done. After talking to the dock personnel we 
have decided we would keep Dean in the office in addition to his other duties in 
the yard and add a person who could help in unloading of containers, work on 
projects and learn how to move towards a long term position in event we have 
someone retire in the near future. 
 

39 of 177



Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing economy.  
* We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and other 
common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will promote 
excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 2 of 2 

 Last month when we experienced some very big winds, a double stack of 
containers fell over on the T dock.  They are a different size than most and this 
contributed to them being blown over. Three questions have come up about the 
containers:  

 Q.   Why do we have so many containers left here for the winter?  
A.   The barge company left them here for one reason or another, either 
no room on the boat south or they just didn’t need them this winter. And 
yes! they are paying storage fees. 

 Q.   Why are they stacked so high? 
 A.   We have, with our equipment, the ability to handle three containers at 

a time. This allows us to stack containers up to six high. 
 Q.   Are we worried that they may fall into the bay?  
 A.   No. The containers interlock and with them stacked wide and long 

they work together to hold themselves up.  The containers that fell over 
were not stacked wide enough and were between the two large stacks 
which made a perfect wind tunnel. 

Harbor 
I have been working on some housekeeping projects from our move into our present 
office last summer, things that didn’t take a priority over day-to-day duties. 

 Made room in the warehouse to fit the boat and tractor for the winter. 
 Working on moving all of the harbors tools and equipment into the warehouse 

and finding permanent homes for all of it. 
Other 

 Working long and hard getting the rekeying supplies organized so I can start the 
changeover process.  This will happen this week I am happy to say! 

 I have been in contact with the Cook Inlet Keeper, they are the organization that 
is helping me work to get the Dillingham Small Boat Harbor certified as an Alaska 
Clean Harbor, I will be starting the online process next month. 

 As a Director on the AAHPA board I have had had a couple of teleconferences  
concerning State funding of Alaska’s harbors and the implementation of a 
scholarship for any high school senior interested in the maritime industry. 

 
If I had to state what accomplishments in my job stood out in 2015, they are:  

 Working toward a safer atmosphere for the fishermen that use the harbor, 
including new LED harbor lighting, more signage to help control and direct the 
areas of the harbor; 

 Almost done with the rekeying project; and  
 Made a large dent in the former Bingman property clean up. 

That is all from the Port department.   
 
Port of Dillingham Advisory Committee Meeting.  Nothing scheduled at this time.  

40 of 177



Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing economy.  
* We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and other 
common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will promote 
excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 1 of 3 

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  

Mayor                                                                                                 Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Holly Johnson 
  Chris Maines 
Manager  Misty Savo 
Rose Loera Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Paul Liedberg 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date:   February 4, 2016 
To:   City Manager Rose Loera  
From: Chief Dan Pasquariello  
Subject:   Public Safety 2015 summary and February 2016 report 
                       
  

Public Safety Activity for year 2015 
 
Police: 
  

 4,429  Calls for service 
 517   Incident reports 
 312   Persons arrested 
 189   Title 47/Protective custody      
 330   Citations issued 
    9      Police officers assaulted 

 
Corrections: 
 

 446 Total Inmates  
 184  Title 47/Protective custody 
   73    Days jail was above our 8 bed capacity (20% of year) 
    3    Corrections officers assaulted 

 
Dispatch: 
 

 5,729    Calls for service  
 75%    Dispatched to Dillingham Police 
 19%   Dispatched to Alaska State Troopers 
 4%   Dispatched to EMS/Fire 
 2%   Dispatched to Animal Control 
 1,629  911 calls received 

 
Animal Control: 
 

    57    animals impounded 
    33    animals returned to owners 
    12    animals adopted from shelter 
    46    animals sent to rescue groups in Alaska 
  218    rabies/parvo shots given 
    84    dog licenses sold 

41 of 177



Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing economy.  
* We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and other 
common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will promote 
excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 2 of 3 

  6     owner requested compassionate euthanasia 
  4     shelter animals euthanized 
 35    citations issued 

 
DMV: 
     

 1,119  Registrations/Titles 
 1,033  Driver’s License/IDs 
      77  CDLs 
      60  Road tests 

 
2015 accomplishments 

 
 All divisions of Public Safety fully-staffed;  
 Closed out a $74,000 Homeland Security grant for radio encryption upgrades, 

tactical response equipment, and oil spill response equipment; 
 Closed out a $28,000 JAG grant for drug investigator salary; 
 Obtained a new $35,000 JAG grant for drug investigator salary; 
 During President Obama’s visit, worked with the US Secret Service to provide 

security for the motorcade and site visits; 
 Partnered with BBAHC with a Drug Take-back event where persons turned in 

unused prescription drugs; 
 Hosted a spay and neuter clinic at pound; 
 Held a Rabies vaccination clinic during Beaver Round-up; 
 Obtained cement pads for outside shelter kennels though donations of local citizens 

and businesses; 
 Shortened DMV hours and at the same time eliminated a staff position by combining 

duties of DMV clerk and administrative assistant; 
 Changed to a higher speed internet which resulted in significant cost savings; 
 Participated in a multi-agency emergency drill at Dillingham Airport; 
 Made several arrests of heroin dealers, and continue to do so, despite local WAANT 

office closure; and 
 Officers visiting with students during school lunch periods. 
 

 
 

February 2016 report 
(reporting period 1-01-16 to 1-26-16) 

 
Police: 
  

 236   Calls for service 
  32 Incident reports 
   13 Persons arrested 
  6 Title 47/Protective custody      
  21 Citations issued 
 

We are currently adapting to new procedures resulting from the vacant prosecutor position at 
local District Attorney’s office.   We now have to interact with an Anchorage based prosecutor, 
and the issues associated with long-distance communications.  Fortunately, our newly assigned 
prosecutor is experienced and hard-working. 

42 of 177



Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing economy.  
* We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and other 
common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will promote 
excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 3 of 3 

 
 
 
We made two major arrest of heroin dealers this reporting period.  We seized $19,000 and a 
substantial amount of drugs. 
 
Corrections: 
 

  22 Total Inmates  
     6  Title 47/Protective custody 

 
One of our corrections officers is attending the Municipal Corrections Academy in Palmer.   This 
will allow him to become APSC certified.  
 
Dispatch: 
 

 370      Calls for service  
 78%    Dispatched to Dillingham Police 
 15%   Dispatched to Alaska State Troopers 
   5%   Dispatched to EMS/Fire 
   2%   Dispatched to Animal Control 
   76     911 calls received 

 
Animal Control: 
 

   4    animals impounded 
   7    rabies/parvo shots given 
   1    citations issued 

 
DMV: 
     

  36    Registrations/Titles 
  45    Driver’s License/IDs 
    3    CDLs 
    1    Road tests 

  

43 of 177



 

44 of 177



City of Dillingham Page 1 of 2 
Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing economy.  
* We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and other 
common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will promote 
excellence in education. 

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  

Mayor Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Holly Johnson 
 Chris Maines 
Manager   Misty Savo 
Rose Loera Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Paul Liedberg 

 
  MEMORANDUM 

 
Date:           December 19, 2015 
 
To: Rose Loera, City Manager 
 
From: Francisco Garcia, Public Works Director 
 
Cc: Dillingham City Council 
 
Subject:  Monthly Staff Report 
 
 
Public Works Department: 
 
As 2015 comes to an end, I would like to touch on some of our accomplishments:  

 Landfill Incinerator.  We took over operation of the incinerator in May and at first 
we were going thru quite a bit of fuel (450 gal/day).  After we tweaked the 
temperatures settings, we were able to bring it down to 200 gal/day on an 8 hour 
shift. Once we went to burning 24hrs/7days a week the fuel consumption went 
down to 60 gals/day and we were able to keep up with the amount of refuse 
coming into the landfill. On our last landfill inspection we received a 90.1% out of 
100%. (Copy of inspection results is attached.) We were at 63% in 2013. 

 
 Sea Wall Protection.  Over 864 tons of rip rap was hauled from 19 mile pit to the 

sea wall at Snag Point to protect the sheet piling from further erosion.  More rip 
rap will be needed to prevent further erosion.  
 

 Water Leak Repaired. We also repaired a water leak at the Bristol Express 
parking lot that has been troublesome for some time.  We are glad to say that it is 
not an issue any longer. 

 
 Dock Lift Station.  Work has begun and the septage receiving tanks were put in 

place.  The blower motor that was installed was not putting out enough air to the 
sewer lagoon.  A new pump was ordered and we are in the process of fabricating 
a mount and piping for it. We are also in the process of addressing several issue 
with other lift stations with the help of CRW Engineering Group. 
 
 

 

45 of 177



City of Dillingham Page 2 of 2 
Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing economy.  
* We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and other 
common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will promote 
excellence in education. 

 New Generator Installed at Public Safety Building.  The new generator replaced 
a very antiquated generator that was not working properly. DPD can now function 
without skipping a beat if we do lose power there. 

 
Happy New Year and may 2016 be prosperous.  
 

46 of 177



47 of 177



48 of 177



49 of 177



 

50 of 177



City of Dillingham Page 1 of 2 
Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing economy.  
* We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and other 
common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will promote 
excellence in education. 

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  

Mayor Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Holly Johnson 
 Chris Maines 
Manager   Misty Savo 
Rose Loera Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Paul Liedberg 

 
  MEMORANDUM 

 
Date:            January 27, 2016 
 
To: Rose Loera, City Manager 
 
From: Francisco Garcia, Public Works Director 
 
Cc: Dillingham City Council 
 
Subject:  Monthly Staff Report 
 
 
 Street Dept.: 

 Sanding roads and the bike paths; 
 Grading in front of the post office and L&M; 
 Pouring calcium chloride into culverts to keep them open so roads do not flood; 
 Assisting at the landfill with burying the metal; and 
 Scraping ice off of city roads. 

 
Water/Sewer Dept.: 

 Conducted monthly water and sewer sampling; 
 Keeping lift stations, sewer treatment and water treatment plant cleaned; 
 Completing monthly DMR reports and turning them in to D.E.C.; 
 Received pumps for Tennyson’s lift station and it’s in operation now; and 
 Dock lift station pump was not seated properly but the crew was able to fix the 

issue. 

Shop Dept.: 
 Keeping up with equipment and vehicle maintenance; 
 Fabricating mounting plate for air pumps at the sewer lagoon; 
 Tried to repair Balderson attachment on the landfill 960 loader, but it is beyond 

repair and must order a new one at a cost of about $15,000.  

B&G Dept.: 
 Maintaining city buildings; 
 Inspection with Yukon fire equipment resulted in finding some deficiencies at the 

Senior Center and at DPD building. They need some sprinkler heads, gauges, 
safety relay, heat sensors and batteries. 

51 of 177



City of Dillingham Page 2 of 2 
Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing economy.  
* We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and other 
common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will promote 
excellence in education. 

 Received new door locks and tumblers for all city building and will be working on 
installing them; and 

 Repaired siding at on City Hall building that was caused by high winds.  
 

Landfill Dept.: 
 Incinerating garbage with no problems; 
 Collecting money and keeping up with paper work; 
 Hired a new operator and we are back to burning 16 hours a day 3 days a week 

and they are keeping up with the refuse coming in; and  
 Cleaning up the shop and organizing it. 

 
 

52 of 177



City of Dillingham Page 1 of 1 
Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing economy.  
* We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and other 
common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will promote 
excellence in education. 

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  

Mayor Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Holly Johnson 
  Chris Maines 
Manager  Misty Savo 
Rose Loera Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Paul Liedberg 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: January 26, 2016 
To: Rose Loera  
From: Ida Noonkesser   
Subject: Staff Report 
  
 
During the month of December, the Senior Center served 242 congregate meals to 43 
individuals, 154 home delivered meals to 13 individuals, gave 178 assisted rides to 24 
individuals and 129 unassisted rides to 18 individuals.    
 
We had five individual renters in the month of December.  We also had our regular 
groups; the Pinochle players group who rent the dining room every Friday and the 
Quilter’s Group who rents the Center every third Saturday.  
 
The Month of December was a busy month with renters decorating the building with the 
help of Isaac Wood and Mary Kapatok, and the MAP school kids. 
 
City office had their Christmas party for the employees on December 23rd. Thank you to 
everyone that bought food and helped clean after the Christmas Party.  
 
During the month of January, the Senior Center served a normal number of congregate 
meals, home delivered meals, and gave assisted and unassisted rides like we do each 
month.  I will not have counts for January for these services until the end of the month, 
but will report them in next month’s report.  
 
Besides the usual groups, we had three renters in the month of January.  Our usual 
renters, the Pinochle player’s group continues to rent the dining room every Friday and 
every third Saturday the Quilters rent the Senior Center. 
 
The Senior Center had three Slavi groups that came and sang for the elders. Elders 
were happy to have them come. Dillingham, Ekuk, and Koliganek all visited with their 
stars.  After the Russian Christmas was over we had the MAP school students and 
other volunteers put the Christmas decorations away. 
 
I am in the process of getting my monthly report done this weekend for the State of 
Alaska.  By the end of the month, I will also be doing the mid-year report for our NTS 
(Nutrition &Transportation Services) grant. 
Our next Advisory Board meeting is on February 12, 2016. 

53 of 177



 

54 of 177



55 of 177



56 of 177



   
CARLSON HOUSE ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 
  JANUARY 20, 2016 

City of Dillingham  January 20, 2016 
Carlson House Advisory Committee Meeting  Page 1 of 3 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
The Carlson House Advisory Committee met on Wed., January 20, 2016, in the Council 
Chambers, Dillingham, AK. Chair Holly Johnson called the meeting to order at 5:31 p.m.   

 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
Committee Members present: 
Holly Johnson  Rose Loera  Keggie Tubbs          
Rae Belle Whitcomb – attended via teleconference  

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. Minutes of December 1, 2015 
 

MOTION: Keggie Tubbs moved and Rose Loera seconded the motion to approve the 
minutes of December 1, 2015.   

 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 

 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
MOTION: Keggie Tubbs moved and Rae Belle Whitcomb seconded the motion to 

amend the agenda to include item c. Bethel Memorial under Unfinished 
Business.     

 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 
5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
a. Inventory Update – Sale #2 scheduled for January 30 
 

Rose Loera reported Sale #2 would be conducted in the same manner as Sale #1, a 
drawing and prices are set.  

 
b. Property Discussion 
 

Rose Loera clarified restrictions on the property applied to leasing; was not 
recommending selling the property.  No action was taken.  

 
c. Bethel Memorial 
 

This item will be taken up at the next meeting.  
 

6. NEW BUSINESS 
 
a. Presentations  
 

57 of 177



   
CARLSON HOUSE ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 
  JANUARY 20, 2016 

City of Dillingham  January 20, 2016 
Carlson House Advisory Committee Meeting  Page 2 of 3 

 
1) Ted Krieg   
 

Ted Krieg spoke in favor of saving the building, at the very least the original log cabin, 
and keep it as a historical property.  He referred to Mary Carlson’s wishes to keep it as 
a museum, that he had previously recommended getting local builders to assess the 
foundation again, and, if it needed to be taken down, look at building another museum 
on the property.   
 

2) U.S. Fish & Wildlife  
 

Susanna Henry explained their agency was looking at purchasing property, and would 
want to continue to be located where they were visible to the community.  One thought 
was to lease the Carlson House property, look at purchasing the adjacent properties if 
the owners would be willing to sell, build a new headquarters, preserve the log cabin for 
a visitor center and display some of the historical items from the home.   

 
b. Schedule the Next Meeting  
 

The next meeting was scheduled for February 18, 2016.   
 

Discussion ensued: 
 Noted the committee would be prepared to look at the three proposals [American 

Legion Post, U.S. Fish and Wildlife, & Ted Krieg), look at the Bethel Memorial 
information, and come up with a recommendation to the Council.  
 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT/COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 
 Jerry Liboff: 

 Spoke in support of keeping the property in the City’s possession and maintain it 
as a historical/cultural center including a museum. 
 

 David Nicholson: 
 Spoke in favor of preserving the building and suggested possibly there were 

volunteers willing to construct a new foundation.   
 

Ted Krieg: 
 Noted maybe some of the Carlson House money could be set aside to look at 

seeking grants, and he would be willing to offer his time at some point.  
 

Keggie Tubbs:  
 Requested that the prior documentation distributed up to now be in the next 

packet.  
 

Rose Loera:  
 Asked for clarification if the recommendation from the chosen proposer as 

presented would be brought before the Council.  

58 of 177



   
CARLSON HOUSE ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 
  JANUARY 20, 2016 

City of Dillingham  January 20, 2016 
Carlson House Advisory Committee Meeting  Page 3 of 3 

 
Discussion ensued: 

 Agreed the committee would bring forward the proposal as presented. 
 
Rae Belle Whitcomb: 

 Noted she would bring information on the Bethel Memorial to the next meeting;  
 Noted, for the record, to bring forward the sale amount to the next meeting of the 

items that were sold; concerned some of the proposals are to preserve some of 
the equipment.   
 

Manager Loera clarified a majority of the items for the next sale are homemade not 
1940 vintage, but there are some vintage wooden boxes.       
 
Rae Belle Whitcomb: 

 Noted she appreciated attending by teleconference and hearing the various 
testimony that was being recorded to provide a true and accurate record; and  

 Noted she, also, would appreciate getting a full packet in advance of the next 
meeting.   

 
Keggie Tubbs: 

 Noted, for the record, at the next meeting make it clear that sale of the property 
was probably not the way the committee was looking at, but a long term lease.    

  
Rae Belle Whitcomb: 

 Noted for the audience’s sake if the recommendation chosen is a long term 
lease, the Council will decide on how the Carlson House funds are spent.   

 
Ted Krieg: 

 Noted he was still interested in looking at the existing property items to see if 
there was anything of historical value that might be retained.  
 

Gorden Isaacs was given a copy of the City Attorney’s advisement regarding the deed 
restrictions on the property.  

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:26 p.m.  
 

       __________________________ 
       Holly Johnson, Chair 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________      
Janice Williams, City Clerk  
 
Approval Date: ___________________________  

59 of 177



 

60 of 177



61 of 177



62 of 177



CODE REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING JANUARY 25, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham Page 1 of 2 January 25, 2016
   

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Code Review Committee met on Monday, January 25, 2016, in the Council Chambers, 
Dillingham, AK. Chair Chris Maines called the special meeting to order at 5:28 p.m.   
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
Committee Members present: 
Chris Maines    Holly Johnson  Misty Savo 
Mayor Alice Ruby  Janice Williams  Navin Bissram   
 
Rose Loera was absent and excused.  
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

a. Minutes of January 14, 2016 
 

MOTION: Mayor Alice Ruby moved and Holly Johnson seconded the motion to approve the 
minutes of January 14, 2016.  

` 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
MOTION: Mayor Alice Ruby moved and Holly Johnson seconded the motion to approve the 

agenda.  
` 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 
5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a. Liquor License Renewals  
 

1) Dillingham Liquor Store 
 

Staff updated the City’s Liquor License Application Review form for the Dillingham Liquor Store: 
 Owner had filed for their State Business License on January 21;  
 City could now issue the City of Dillingham Business License since the State Business 

License had been filed;  
 Owner was contacted and asked to file personal property returns by February 1 that had 

not been filed for the years 2013-2015; and  
 City had received the business licensing fees for 2013-2015, but could not find why the 

licenses were never issued for those same years.  
 
If the City is going to protest the liquor license renewal, they will need to do so by February 5, which 
is 60 days from December 7, the date the owner filed for a liquor license renewal.    
 

63 of 177



CODE REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING JANUARY 25, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham Page 2 of 2 January 25, 2016
   

MOTION: Mayor Ruby moved and Misty Savo seconded the motion to recommend to the 
Council to protest the Dillingham Liquor Store liquor license renewal based on the 
personal property returns were not filed for 2013, 2014 and 2015.  

 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  

 
As part of the review process, Manager Loera will provide an update at the February 4 Council 
meeting.  

 
2) Willow Tree Inn 

 
Staff updated the City’s Liquor License Application Review form for the Willow Tree: 

 City had received the business licensing fees for 2013-2015, but could not find why the 
licenses were never issued for those same years.  
 

Kim Parker, an owner of the Willow Tree Inn, asked the committee if they would wait on taking any 
action since the liquor license had yet to be applied for with the State.  
 
The State allows for a 60 day grace period from the date of expiration of the license, December 31, 
2015, to file for a renewal.  The last day to apply is February 29, postmark date.   
 
MOTION: Mayor Alice Ruby moved and Holly Johnson seconded the motion to recommend the 

Council delay taking any action until the license is applied for.  
 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT/COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 
Mayor Ruby stated she appreciated there was a process since this was not an easy task.    
 
Chris Maines thanked Kim Parker and Navin Bissram for participating in the meeting.   
 
7. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:56 p.m.  
       __________________________ 
       Chris Maines, Chair 
ATTEST: 
___________________________      
Janice Williams, City Clerk  
 
Approval Date: ___________________________ 

64 of 177



 
FINANCE AND BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING   MEETING MINUTES 
              JANUARY 18, 2016

 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting  January 18, 2016 
 City of Dillingham   Page 1 of 3 

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Finance and Budget Committee met on Monday, January 18, 2016, in the City 
Council Chambers, Dillingham, AK. Mayor Alice Ruby, Acting Chair, called the meeting 
to order at 5:34 p.m. 
 
2.  ROLL CALL 
 
Committee Members present: 

   
Mayor Alice Ruby Paul Liedberg –attended via teleconference      Rose Loera 
Andy Anderson Curt Armstrong  Navin Bissram 
 
3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

a. November 30, 2015 
 
MOTION:  Andy Anderson moved and Rose Loera seconded the motion to approve 

the minutes of November 30, 2015.  
 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by general consent. 

 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
MOTION:  Curt Armstrong moved and Andy Anderson seconded the motion to 

approve the agenda with the addition of two items under New Business: 
item b. Bond for a Public Safety Building and item c. CIP List.  

 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by general consent. 
 
5. STAFF REPORTS 
    

a. October Financial Reports 
 

The committee reviewed the October financial statements.   
 
Follow-up: 

 Present a proposed mid-year budget amendment at the February F&B meeting 
for recommendation to the Council at their March Council meeting.     

 
6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
a. Fiscal Policy Development   

 
1) Review Internal Controls (Placeholder)  

65 of 177



 
FINANCE AND BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING   MEETING MINUTES 
              JANUARY 18, 2016

 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting  January 18, 2016 
 City of Dillingham   Page 2 of 3 

 
There was nothing to discuss at this time.  
 

b. Rate Review  
 
 1) General Fees 
 

MOTION: Andy Anderson moved and Curt Armstrong seconded the motion to 
approve the recommended changes to the general fees schedule. 

 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  

 
Follow-up: 

 Add a column to the table of contents that records the date each fee has last 
been reviewed. 
 
 2) Ord. No. 2016-01, Increase Animal Control Fees 

 
Rose Loera reviewed the proposed ordinance recommended by the committee at the 
previous meeting that will be introduced to the Council at their February 4 meeting.  

 
 3) E-911  
 

Follow-up: 
 Will bring forward a cost analysis of the E-911 rate to the next meeting.   

 
c. Tobacco Tax (Postponed for now) 
 

There was nothing to discuss at this time.   
 

d. Sales Tax Exemption 
 
Navin Bissram reported staff was in the process of sending letters to businesses that 
were not attaching a tax exemption log to their sales tax filing. He was asking the 
committee to review enforcement for non-filing.  
 
Follow-up: 

 For the next meeting outline a campaign to educate tax exempt organizations on 
their filing requirements and responsibilities, such as asking for proof of 
exemption; and 

 Report on efforts underway at the next Council meeting.   
 
7. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Budget for a Sales Tax Audit for 2017  
 

66 of 177



 
FINANCE AND BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING   MEETING MINUTES 
              JANUARY 18, 2016

 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting  January 18, 2016 
 City of Dillingham   Page 3 of 3 

 
Follow-up: 

 Retain this item on the agenda; staff to develop a plan for conducting the sales 
tax audits, hiring a contractor or using staff.    

 
b. Bonding for a Public Safety Building 
 

Rose Loera reported the City has informed the State that it is interested in considering 
bonding options for funding a public safety building. This is only a letter of interest and 
would not obligate the City.  It is anticipated that a committee will be appointed to revisit 
the Public Safety Building and Fire Hall feasibility study to see if it was still a viable 
option.   
 
 c. CIP List 
 
Rose Loera reported the Council will be presented with the proposed Capital 
Improvement Projects List for FY 2017 at their Feb. 4, meeting.  
 
8. PUBLIC/COMMITTEE COMMENT(S) 
 
A copy of the draft CIP List was shared with audience member Wanda Fulton.  The CIP 
List will be included in the February 4 Council packet.   
 
There were no other public/committee comments.  
 
9. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:41 p.m.   
   
 __________________________ 
 Paul Liedberg, Chair 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Janice Williams, City Clerk 
 
Approved: _________________________ 

67 of 177



 

68 of 177



DILLINGHAM PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      DECEMBER 16, 2015 
 
 

City of Dillingham  December 16, 2015 
Planning Commission                                       Page 1 of 4 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Dillingham Planning Commission was held on Wednesday, December 
16, 2015, at the Dillingham City Council Chambers, Dillingham, Alaska. Chair Julie Baltar called 
the meeting to order at 5:42 p.m.   
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
Members present and establishing a quorum (a quorum being four): 

Julie Baltar  Brad Archer  William Corbett  Andy Anderson 
Gregg Marxmiller – attended via teleconference at 6:12 p.m.    
          

Members absent: Sabrina Savo (excused)  
 
Staff in attendance:  Rose Loera   

 
Guests present: Isaac Pearson of BESC – attended via teleconference  

  
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

a. Regular Planning Commission Meeting, May 13, 2015  
 

MOTION: Andy Anderson moved and William Corbett seconded the motion to approve the 
minutes of May 13, 2015.  
 

VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA   
 
MOTION: Brad Archer moved and Andy Anderson seconded the motion to approve the 

agenda with the addition of the draft Hazard Mitigation Plan under item 7, 
Unfinished Business.   
 

VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 
5. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

a.  Communications to the Planning Commission  
 

City Manager Loera reported activities being addressed [in the absence of a planner] include:  
 Staff has been handling requests for burial permits and copies of maps; 
 Interactive Web Map: has become a really good resource; have been instructing people 

on its availability;  
 Electronic storage: most of the Planning resolutions, minutes, and encroachments since 

2012, have been scanned and archived;   
 Land Use permits filed.    

 
b.  Planner’s Report 

69 of 177



DILLINGHAM PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      DECEMBER 16, 2015 
 
 

City of Dillingham  December 16, 2015 
Planning Commission                                       Page 2 of 4 

City Manager Loera read from the Planner’s report. She also recommended holding quarterly 
meetings for the time being, unless a meeting was necessary to act on something that was time 
sensitive.   

 
Discussion ensued regarding the possibility of scheduling a strategic planning session, and a 
workshop on the transportation system.  Manager Loera responded it would have to wait until a 
planning director came on board.  

 
c.  Citizen’s Comments on Items Not on the Agenda   
 

There were no citizen comments.  
 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Julie Baltar opened the hearing on the replat of Lots 1 & 2 of Block 1 of Floatplane Subdivision.   
 

a. Replat of Lots 1 & 2 of Block 1 of Floatplane Subdivision  
 
It was noted Dillingham Bible Fellowship owned both lots.  The request was to remove the 
common lot line, and make it one big lot. 
 
There being no other comments, the public hearing closed.  
 
7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 a. Draft Hazard Mitigation Plan  
   
Manager Loera clarified some of the meetings mentioned in the report were conducted by 
teleconference.  The draft plan would be presented to the Council at their January Council 
meeting, and submitted to the State by the deadline to allow the City to apply for FEMA funds.  It 
could be revised later as necessary.      
 
8.  NEW BUSINESS  
 

a. Adopt Resolution No. 2015-14, Approving a Long Term Encroachment at the City 
Dock Lift Station to Adjust Height of Transformer and Vault 

 
MOTION: Andy Anderson moved and William Corbett seconded the motion to adopt 

Resolution No. 2015-14. 
 

VOTE: The motion to adopt Resolution No. 2015-14 passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 

b. Adopt Resolution No. 2015-15, Approving a Long Term Encroachment to Bury 
Communication Corridor in Order to Remove Harbor Spur Road Crossing  

 
MOTION: Andy Anderson moved and William Corbett seconded the motion to adopt 

Resolution No. 2015-15. 
 

70 of 177



DILLINGHAM PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      DECEMBER 16, 2015 
 
 

City of Dillingham  December 16, 2015 
Planning Commission                                       Page 3 of 4 

VOTE: The motion to adopt Resolution No. 2015-15 passed unanimously by voice vote.  
c. Adopt Resolution No. 2015-16, Approving a Long Term Encroachment to Install a 

Street Light at Lot 2, Block 18, White Subdivision  
 

MOTION: Andy Anderson moved and Brad Archer seconded the motion to adopt Resolution 
No. 2015-16. 

 
VOTE: The motion to adopt Resolution No. 2015-16 passed unanimously by voice vote.  

 
d. Adopt Resolution No. 2015-17, Recommending Replat of Lots 1 & 2 of Block 1 of 

Floatplane Subdivision  
 

MOTION: Gregg Marxmiller moved and William Corbett seconded the motion to adopt 
Resolution No. 2015-17. 

 
VOTE: The motion to adopt Resolution No. 2015-17 passed unanimously by voice vote.  

 
e. Nerka Road 95% Design and Teal Lane Extension  
 

Isaac Pearson reported BESC was under contract with Curyung Tribe to provide engineering 
services to upgrade five roads in Nerka Subdivision. One of the proposed roads is the 
connection of Teal Lane to Widgeon Lane.  The design process has been underway for a 
number of years, and there is an existing platted right of way. Due to a number of concerns with 
that connection, other egresses out of Nerka Loop were looked at, but they could not get the 
needed right-of-ways and/or the construction cost was more problematic.  He noted Teal Lane 
was the lowest priority, that the proposed road project could be built in phases and didn’t have to 
build every road noted in the design.      

 
(Notes from the Nov. 9, 2015 public meeting in Dillingham were included in the packet.)  
 
Richard Thompson noted he was all for progress, but the proposal would bisect a residential 
subdivision and turn it into a major traffic feeder road.  He felt there were alternative routes, 
including improving Emperor Way. He also asked to add the word more to his comment on page 
45; if all other work was done except Teal Lane Extension Richard Thompson would be more in 
support of the project. 
 
Discussion ensued:  

 Noted there would be a proposed creek realignment and would fill some wetlands; 
 Noted the existing right-of-way cut along Lisac’s property line;  
 Stated the City had no funding for the project, but Nerka Road was on the city’s CIP list;  
 Noted street lighting and a wider shoulder for walking, with rumble strips, were included 

in the design;  
 Noted the total estimated construction cost was $7.5M, est. $5M without asphalt.  
 Noted Curyung Trube was looking for input from the City on Teal Lane; they were not 

interested in spending design funds if it was not going to be an acceptable route.  
MOTION: Andy Anderson moved and William Corbett seconded the motion to recommend to 

the City Council they have no objection to the 95% design alignment as presented 
[page 48], but do not provide an opinion for moving on to construction at this time.  

71 of 177



DILLINGHAM PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      DECEMBER 16, 2015 
 
 

City of Dillingham  December 16, 2015 
Planning Commission                                       Page 4 of 4 

VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 

9. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
There were no citizen comments.  
 
10. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
 
The commissioners welcomed Brad Archer to his first meeting and thanked Isaac and the 
audience for their participation.   
 
11. ADJOURNMENT  

 
The meeting adjourned at 7:16 p.m.   
 
       ______________________________ 
       Julie Baltar, Chair  
 
ATTEST:      [SEAL]      
 
 
_______________________________ 
Janice Williams, City Clerk    
 
Approval Date:_______________________   

72 of 177



73 of 177



74 of 177



75 of 177



 

76 of 177



  
SCHOOL FACILITY COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 
   JANUARY 20, 2016 

 

School Facility Committee Meeting  January 20, 2016 
  Page 1 of 3 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The School Facility Committee met on January 20, 2016, at the Dillingham Council 
Chambers, Dillingham, AK.  Mayor Alice Ruby called the meeting to order at 12:15 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
Committee Members present: 

Mayor Alice Ruby  Danny Frazier  Rose Loera  
 Chris Napoli   Andy Anderson  Corey Evans 
 Russell Nelson   Francisco Garcia  Robin Samuelsen 

       
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
MOTION: Robin Samuelsen moved and Chris Napoli seconded the motion to approve 

the agenda. 
 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.   
 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

a. Minutes of December 17, 2015 
 
MOTION: Chris Napoli moved and Andy Anderson seconded the motion to approve the 

minutes of December 17, 2015.  
 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 
5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
a. Prioritize CIP Projects 
 

The three projects identified for FY 2017 were: 
 Insulate science wing beams; 
 Replace heat exchanger at the elementary school; and 
 Expand tank and piping in the heat exchange room at the high/middle school.  

 
b. Status of Invoices for Completed Projects Using School Bond Funds 
 

Rose Loera noted the invoices had been submitted to the city and a check issued for 
reimbursement to the school.   

 
c. Teacher Housing - Update on Planning a Future Meeting 
 

Mayor Ruby noted there was a meeting planned with several members of the committee to 
formulate a plan to engage providers in the community to help address teacher housing.  
 

77 of 177



  
SCHOOL FACILITY COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 
   JANUARY 20, 2016 

 

School Facility Committee Meeting  January 20, 2016 
  Page 2 of 3 

 
d. Review Proposed Ord. No. 2016-XX 
 

This ordinance would bring DMC Section 2.72.070 School district – facilities, in line with actual 
practice.   

 
MOTION: Chris Napoli moved and Robin Samuelsen seconded the motion to 

recommend the ordinance to the City Council.  
 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  

 
e.  Facility Modifications Policy 04-10 
 

Follow-up: 
 Will ask the Executive Secretary to send the School Facilities report and board minutes 

of the meeting to city clerk for inclusion in School Facility Committee packet.  
  

6. NEW BUSINESS  
 

a. Schedule Next Meeting 
 

The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, March 16, at the school, and plan for a walk 
around the school.   

 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT/COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 
Russell Nelson:  

 Noted a representative from State of Alaska School Finance and Facilities will be 
visiting the school Feb. 2 to inspect the facilities; and will mostl likely provide report 
on things that need to be fixed;  

 Noted a representative from Cool Air Mechanical visited the school facilities and 
gave them an estimate to replace the heat exchanger.  

 
Rose Loera: 

 Recommended when the school plans to bring Cool Air Mechanical to town to give 
the City a heads up, might be able to use them as well and share the travel expense.  

 
Danny Frazier: 

 Noted the transportation costs may be cut in the governor’s proposed budget; and 
 Noted there is a teacher shortage, other districts offer teacher housing, trying to stay 

competitive.  
 
Mayor Ruby: 

 Stated that she would work with Rose and Chris to schedule a joint School 
Board/Council meeting at the school; could do a walk-through and present a 
progress report on the facilities and programs; and  

 
 

78 of 177



  
SCHOOL FACILITY COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 
   JANUARY 20, 2016 

 

School Facility Committee Meeting  January 20, 2016 
  Page 3 of 3 

 
 Noted the school had offered a resolution to support maintaining enrollment for small 

rural schools, but the city had been advised to wait for the outcome of the legislative 
session.  

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Ruby adjourned the meeting at 12:54 p.m.  
 
             
       Mayor Alice Ruby, Chair 
ATTEST:       
 
      
Janice Williams, City Clerk  
 
Approval Date:       

79 of 177



 

80 of 177



81 of 177



82 of 177



83 of 177



84 of 177



85 of 177



 

86 of 177



87 of 177



88 of 177



89 of 177




